MINUTES
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui
Council Chamber
June 6,2006

CONVENE: 9:02 a.m.
PRESENT:

Councilmember Michael J. Molina, Chair
Councilmember Dain P. Kane, Vice-Chair (out 9:25 a.m.; in 9:27 a.m.)
Councilmember Michelle Anderson, Member
Councilmember Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Member (in 9:18 a.m.)
Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson, Member (out 12:05 p.m.)
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member
Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla, Member
Councilmember Charmaine Tavares, Member

STAFF:

Richelle Kawasaki, Legislative Attorney
Shelly Espeleta, Legislative Analyst
Clarita Balala, Committee Secretary

ADMIN.:

David DeLeon, Executive Assistant to the Mayor (Item Nos. 2(22) & 46)
Thomas Phillips, Chief, Department of Police (Item No. 4(9»
Alice Lee, Director, Department of Housing and Human Concerns (Item No. 46)
Kalbert Young, Director, Department of Finance (Item No. 46 in the gallery)
Michael Miyamoto, Deputy Director, Department of Public Works and
Environmental Management (Item No. 44 - in the gallery)
Moana
Lutey, Deputy Corporation Counsel,
Counsel (Item Nos. 4(9), 5(10), & 28)
Corporation
Counsel (Item Nos. 4(9) & 5(10))
Brian Moto, Corporation Counsel, Department

OTHERS:

Mercer "Chubby" Vicens
Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez
Rob Parsons, Executive Assistant, Office of the Mayor
Richard Michaels, Maui Tomorrow Foundation
Meleana Higgins, Director for Housing and Property Program Development,
Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
Additional attendees (3)

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

June 6, 2006

PRESS:

AKAKU - Maui Community Television, Inc.
Ilima Loomis, The Maui News

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) . .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for June 6, 2006, is now in session.
Thank you very much for attending, Members. For the record, we have in attendance the Vice-Chair of
the Committee Member Kane, as well as Members Mateo, Tavares, Anderson, and Carroll. Excused are
Members Johnson, Hokama, and Pontanilla.
Members, we have a very full agenda today. The Chair at some point, depending on how far we get
through our agenda, will ask you to consider a possible recess date of Thursday, June 8th, at 9:00 a.m.,
but we will see how far we proceed and then we will make that determination later today. The Chair
would also like to recognize Members Johnson and Pontanilla to our proceedings this morning. From
the Staff we have Analyst Richelle Kawasaki Lu as well Shelly Espeleta, and Committee Secretary
Clarita Balala, and from the Corporation Counsel's Office we have Mr. Brian Moto.
Before we proceed with our agenda items today the Chair will open up the floor for testimony from the
public. We have several members of the public signed up to testify and before we begin testimony, the
Chair would like to go over the ground rules. You will have three minutes to testify with a minute to
conclude. Please tum off all cell phones and pagers, and if you are representing any particular
organization please state that for the record. So, let us begin first with public testimony. First to testify
we have Mercer "Chubby" Vicens to be followed by Torn Blackburn-Rodriguez .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

MR. VICENS: Good morning, Chairman Molina and Members of the Committee. My name is Mercer
"Chubby" Vicens, and I am testifying as an individual this morning, and I am testifying on COW-46, the
Charter amendment to establish an affordable housing
I would just like to state at this
on, on the matter I, I am for
I
it's, it's a good start towards
based on what I
heard so
developing a
being able to
some affordable
Years ago
outside government
through
is
right for this. When you receive donations of lands, I think there are the appropriate tools available
today to be able to use funds such as this for the, for the good of the community. That's all I have to
say.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Vicens. Committee Members, any questions? Seeing none. Thank
you.
MR. VICENS: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify we have Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez followed by Rob Parsons.
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MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee. My name is
Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez, and I will be testifying as an individual this morning. First of all, I would
like to say that I am also in support of the effort of this Committee. I think that it's a good idea. I think
it's worked well in other circumstances. And I would hope that the Committee can move forward.
I also believe that the purposes for which the affordable housing fund would, could be utilized for are
especially noteworthy, and I did want to point out that one of the areas that I thought was particularly
interesting is that the fund may also be utilized for the payment of interest, principal and pre ... , and
premium fees and expenses, if any, associated with the issuance of bonds for the purpose of building
affordable housing, which I think is an excellent way to get a bigger bang for the buck out of our money.
I would like to make a suggestion that the, the one percent, which I understand, because there has been a
precedent kind of set on one percent, is attractive. However, I would like to respectfully suggest to the
Committee that it be a five percent set aside. The five percent set aside with a ten-year cap would
generate an estimated $7.5 million per year or $75 million over ten years. When one looks at the cost of
housing, the cost of land, the cost of materials, and what it really takes to develop housing, 1.5 million,
which is a good start, does not begin to deal with the real cost of development.
And so I would like to suggest that since a cap is being suggested for this that the amount be set at five
percent which would then generate an estimated $75 million over ten years, which could be leveraged
many times more than that. And I'd like to suggest that to you, and thank you very much for your
efforts in getting this moving forward.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Rodriguez. Committee Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you very much. Good morning.
MOLINA: Next to testify we

Parsons followed by ~"'-'"'Uu., Michaels.

PARSONS:

Members. My name is Rob Parsons,
om:errlS to Mayor
I
Committee
the Whole 44 to split
Environmental Management
two separate departments
greater efficiency,
resolution to place this measure on the ballot as an Amendment to the County Charter.

I also feel it is essential to retain the name Environmental Management and not to revert to the name, the
former Department name of Waste Management. In 2002, voters chose this positive change by a wide
margin, 66 percent voted yes, 23 percent voted no, which is nearly a three to one preference. And I
believe this indicates the beliefs of those in our community that the quality of the natural environment
around us is of great importance as reflected in responses to Focus Maui Nui surveys.
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William McDonough, one of the great thinkers of our time and a recent guest speaker on Maui
challenges us to rethink our concepts of waste. In nature nothing is wasted. It becomes food and thus
energy for other organisms. It's only recently that we've become a throw-away, disposable society.
And I believe we shouldn't throwaway this opportunity to refocus our efforts on protecting, preserving,
and restoring our precious environment.
Last Friday, I had the opportunity to speak at length with Fred Schwettmann and John Lundin,
subcommittee members of the Cost of Government Commission who will be bringing their findings
forward at the next meeting June 15th. They inquired as to whether a new Department of Environmental
Management could house a position or even a division for broader coordination of environmental efforts
and initiatives such as my current role. And as you know my position is appointed not permanent. In
our County structure we have a Recycling Coordinator, Energy Coordinator, and Agricultural
Coordinator, and it's my hope that this Department could logically house a permanent position for an
Environmental Coordinator as well.
One of the reasons that I have sought to establish a Maui County Environmental Resource Center is to
ensure continuity in County environmental efforts with a physical location that's appropriate and
inspiring. With the establishment of my position there have been greater opportunities to support our
environmental partners in the community including those working to control invasive species, protect
our oceans and reefs, restore native habitats, preserve coastal open space and much more. There has
been greater call for resource conservation from expanding our recycling and compo sting efforts to
supporting gill net bans and commercial sales of opihi, to our inland sand quantification study, moving
to acquire the Na Wai Eha water system and to restore stream flows. We've made great strides to
highlight our environmental efforts, and it's my hope that we may build upon these initiatives.
Notably, Hawaii County has adopted the split to a Department of Public Works and a Department of
Environmental Management. Many other municipalities have chosen this forward looking change in
name and intent
MS.
PARSONS:
Sacramento,
the States of Alabama,

HU.UHJer lL',""U.V.

LHUCHUl«,

lH';UU''-'.

San Diego, Kansas
Rhode
Massachusetts, to name a

My office, which is located
the administrative office of the Department of Public Works and
Environmental Management, has taped to my wall several editorials and articles: "The Environment
Needs Priority"; "The Environment is Business"; "Environment: Key to the Future"; and "Environment
is the Economy." Our greater awareness of these essential themes will surely be furthered by the
inclusion of the word "environment" in the draft resolution before you.
I believe that to send a measure to the voters that proposed a Department of Waste Management rather
than Environmental Management would send a confusing message which could undermine the intent
behind the measure which is greater efficiency and accountability to our daily operations and
management of our resources.
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MS. ESPELETA: Four minutes.
MR. PARSONS: Finally, I urge you to pass the resolution before you today with the language changed to
reflect our continuing commitment to the environment. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Parsons. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you. Next to testify we have Richard Michaels to be followed by Meleana Higgins.
MR. MICHAELS: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee. My name is Richard Michaels.
I am the Affordable Housing Chairman of the Maui Tomorrow Foundation, and I'm here testifying on
behalf of Maui Tomorrow.
I, I'd like to start by saying thank you for the $50,000 appropriation the Council made for the
Community Land Trust. This is my first opportunity to tell you thank you for that. On the way in this
morning, I heard on the radio--I don't know if any of you heard--that the figures on the median house in
Honolulu had, for May were up 8.7 percent from April. Now, we haven't got our own yet, but the, the
crisis in affordable housing obviously continues.
I think this is an excellent idea that current property owners with their property tax would contribute to
dealing with the great lack of affordable housing. But I've come here this morning with actually more
questions than answers. A lot of, a lot of detail, I think, needs to be discussed by the Council and by this
Committee to, to make sure that this works in the best way possible, but nothing that I'm going to
present right now is in order to shoot this down. I want to make it real clear that we are definitely in
favor of having this set aside.
Firstly, who will manage and protect this fund? Is it a trust fund? I noticed in the resolution that it
states that it cannot be used for any other purposes, but I'm reminded ofthe hurricane fund that the State
created and after ten years with no hurricane Government started looking at, well, maybe we should use
the money for something else. So, I
it needs a lot of protection.
I note the
the
can be
or new construction. My question is, who
be a separate entity
deals
fund?

it

The Residential Workforce Housing Policy that's now being considered Chairman Mateo's Housing
and Human Services Committee includes a provision for payment of in lieu fees. So, my question is,
will, will that, this be a separate fund from that, or will these funds all be combined for basically the
same purpose?
Should consideration be given to where the property tax money comes from? If West Maui and South
Maui contribute a lion share of the funds should an equitable proportion of the funds be spent for
affordable housing in those areas? Should you consider perhaps dividing the fund into community plan
areas? I'm not sure what the answer to that is.
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And will any of the funds be available to the newly fonnative Community Land Trust? By
owning ... the Community Land Trust, by owning land and selling only the building makes homes more
affordable to lower income groups that, let's say 100 percent and less of median income, and also keeps
these homes affordable in perpetuity. So, a good purpose for at least some of this money might be to
help fund the Community Land Trust.
MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. MICHAELS: And finally, is the Charter amendment the best way to present this program? Does it make
it too difficult to amend as, as conditions change? Should it include a sunset clause, or would an
ordinance be more appropriate? So, usually when I come here I present positive testimony and you ask
the questions. So, this morning I'm presenting the questions to you. I think these are things that you
need to deal with, and I definitely would like to see you approve the resolution in some fonn. Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Michaels. Committee Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, Mr. Michaels.
MR. MICHAELS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I was wondering if we could have a copy of your presentation because
there are a lot of infonnation that you've given out this morning?
MR. MICHAELS: Yes, be happy to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MOLINA: Members, any other questions?
Higgins. Ms.
is
last person to sign
to give testimony on
of our agenda

'L-.LJLL :LLL'-

Next to testify is Meleana
give the public one last
ahead, Ms.

MS. HIGGINS: Aloha and good morning,
My name is Meleana Higgins,
I am
and Property Program
Maui Economic Opportunity. And I'm also staffed at the Maui Nui Housing Task Force, but this
morning I'm testifying for Maui Economic Opportunity. The Task Force would be testifying had we
known, had a little bit more notice, but here I am for MEO. And I would like to thank my predecessors
for their testimony, Chubby and Tom and Richard Michaels made some excellent points.
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And MEO, as you know, has been supporting affordable housing for Maui County families for some
time, for a long while. And as you're aware we have staffed the Maui Nui Housing Task Force. We are
in full support, full support of the County Communication presented by Councilmember Molina,
transmitting the resolution to initiate an amendment to the Charter. However, the point that Richard
Michaels makes is a good one. Is the Charter amendment the best way to get the job done? I will leave
that to, to the Committee to, to make that decision. There are some good questions that Maui Tomorrow
has brought forward, and I will bring that back to our Maui Nui Housing Task Force so that we can
evaluate them.
MEO is also in full support of appropriating a minimum of two percent of real property tax revenues to
the fund for building and expanding affordable housing. However, Tom's point about raising that to
five percent is well taken. Two percent is, is low and five percent would be better. As we all know,
75 million would go a long way over the next ten years to doing what we need to do here in Maui
County. And so, we encourage your adoption of the revised proposed resolution and whichever way
you go, whether it's a Charter amendment or an ordinance we certainly support that. And we thank you,
again, very much for supporting affordable housing in Maui County and this will definitely be a step
forward in that direction. So, mahalo for the ability to testify. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Higgins. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you. The Chair will offer the public one last opportunity for testimony. Seeing no one making
an effort to come on up here or everybody seems to be satisfied, the Chair will close public testimony
for today. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Public testimony is closed for our agenda items today .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MOLINA: Okay. Members, we shall begin
2 (22). Before we do
the

presence

MOLINA: Good
COW-2(22)

NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS

(VARIOUS)

(C.c. No. 05-20)

CHAIR MOLINA: First agenda item deals with nominations to Boards, Committees, and Commissions. We
have several Boards and Commissions being considered that have nominations for. We have from the
Mayor's Office, Mr. DeLeon.
MR. DELEON: Good morning.
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CHAIR MOLINA: And before we recognize, Mr. DeLeon, the Chair would like to just go over the nominees.
First, for the Board of Variances and Appeals, Shirley Alapa replacing Jersula Manaba for a term
expiring on March 31, 2007. For the Commission on Culture and the Arts, Katherine Taylor replacing
Diane Wydock for a term expiring on March 31, 2008; Elaine Gast replacing Janet Agapay for a term
expiring on March 31,2010. For the Commission on Naming Streets, Parks, and Facilities,
Kaheleonolani Dukelow replacing Susanne (Kamaile) Kekahuna for a term expiring on March 31, 2007.
For the Liquor Control Adjudication Board, Joe Tanaka replacing Lance Collins for a term expiring on
March 31, 2010. For the Liquor Control Commission Todd Lawson replacing Blake Takayama for a
term expiring on March 31, 2009.
The Council must approve or disapprove these nominations by July 18, 2006, or the nominees will be
deemed approved. So, at this point the Chair would like to tum matters over to Mr. Deleon for further
comment.
MR. DELEON: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Members. Am Ion? The, this is the standard replacement
list of, of persons that resigned and this replacing them.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Committee Members, any questions for Mr. DeLeon
regarding the nominees for the various Boards and Commissions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I know Mr. Tanaka has served as well in the past. What was the length of
time between his last service on, was it on this Board or the Liquor Commission?
MR. DELEON: It was on the Commission, sir.
that,

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Commission please?

span

smce

got

I

COUNCILMEMBER

Six

A«'U'HUh'

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Committee Members, any other questions for
Mr. DeLeon regarding the nominees? Seeing none. The Chair will ask the body first is there any
request for separation; otherwise, the Chair will consider a motion for incorporating all the nominees for
the Boards and Commissions. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I don't have a question about the particular nominees,
but I do have a question about Boards and Commissions.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Proceed.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. DeLeon, I note that the Subdivision Review Committee has not met
for the last two years, and that memberships have expired as of March of this year, and that you're not
presenting any new member applicants for that committee. Is there some reason that committee is not
meeting?
MR. DELEON: There's ample committees that haven't met recently, because they don't have any business in
front of them, but I don't believe we have a vacancy that I did not try to fill.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, there are .. .I just looked at the, the website on this, and there are two
positions that expired March 31 st of this year, and the Committee has not met for two years. So, I'm
wondering if the committee is defunct or why it's not meeting.
MR. DELEON: That's an interesting question that the Cost of Government Commission is actually looking at,
into. We have Boards and Commissions that we don't really need. And, and that would be indicated by
the lack of being called to service, because there's no, no requirement for them. The Office of the
Mayor does not oversee these different Boards and Commissions. We, we help with the, the nomination
process to get people on these Boards, but we don't oversee the operation of the Boards. My current list
for, for Boards and Commissions for Subdivision Standards shows a full Commission, and I can, happy
to share that with you. It may be that the website wasn't updated.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I did speak to a member whose, whose appointment expired on the
31st of this year, and he said it didn't amount to much anyway, because they have not met for two years.
And my point in bringing this up is that any changes that are going on within Title 18 or even Title 19
that have to do with subdivisions need to be brought to this committee for their review. And as you
know members on this committee, at least three of them, have to be licensed engineers.
And the reason I bring this up is that we're having problems right now. I don't know if you're aware of
the meeting we had yesterday where excessive fill is being allowed on subdivi ... , subdivided properties.
I believe these are
And we're also being asked to reconsider a change height, building height.
issues
go before
Committee
consideration.
DELEON:
these matters.

I suggest

a

to

to

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you're here as a representative for Boards and Commissions, and I
thought maybe you could -MR. DELEON: I'm here for appointments only.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson, if I may inteIject. We could via through Committee we could make
that inquiry for you if you-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, I would appreciate that.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other questions for Mr. DeLeon related to our nominees
and commissions that are on the agenda today? Seeing none. The Chair will ask for a motion, to
consider a motion to support all of the nominees for the various Boards and Commissions.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Tavares. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: And seconded by Member Mateo. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, one question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The deadline is till July 18 th for approval without decision by Council; is
that the correct date, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions as it relates to the motion on the floor? Seeing none.
All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA:

those disapproval? Seeing none. Motion passes 8-0, with one excused Member Kane.

AYES:

Mateo,

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Kane.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending APPROVAL of nominations.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Members. Members, we're now moving on to Committee of the
Whole Item 4(9), Indemnification Authorization (Michael David Ogden v. Special Administrator of the
Estate of Charles Benson Ogden v. County ofMaui, et al.).

COW-4(9)

INDEMNIFICATION AUTHORIZATION (MICHAEL DAVID OGDEN, AS SPECIAL
ADMINISTRATOR OF THE ESTATE OF CHARLES BENSON OGDEN V. COUNTY
OF MAUl, ET AL., CIVIL NO. CV06-00113) (C.c. No. 05-23)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated May 4,2006, from the Corporation
Counsel's office regarding this matter. The complaint alleges wrongful death and various violations of
Charles Benson Ogden's constitutional and civil rights. The purpose of the proposed resolution is to
indemnify Police Officer Clifford Pacheco in this matter. From the Corporation Counsel's Office
joining us we have Moana Lutey, as well as Laureen Martin, and from the Police Department Chief Tom
Phillips. Good morning, Chief.
MR. PHILLIPS: Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I'll turn the floor over first to Ms. Lutey to give opening comments in open session.
Proceed, Ms. Lutey.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning. I'm down here today to ask you for indemnification for
Officer Clifford Pacheco. This case was highly publicized, and I will give you as brief of an overview
as I can of this case. It is in active litigation, so if you have matters that you would like to discuss about
strategy and so forth I would ask that we go into executive session, but I believe that we could probably
handle this on the floor.
On January 29,2004, police received a complaint that a man had exposed his genitals to children at a
beach in Kihei. Officer Pacheco went to speak to a man at the beach, but at the time he did not realize
that it was Charles Benson Ogden, because that man had changed his clothes before Officer Pacheco had
arrived. The woman who had caned the police to report the indecent exposure motioned to Officer
Pacheco. He
the beach to go speak
he
back he noticed
Mr. Ogden
was gone.
Officer Pacheco believed
Mr. Ogden
gone a
on
beach, so to catch
cut through some property fronting the beach.
as
was doing so a
citizen by
the name of John Lucia ran up to him to ask him what he was doing, and then took off down towards the
beach where he caught up with Charles Benson Ogden and began trying to get Mr. Ogden to stop and
speak to police.
Mr. Ogden did not and at one point when it was suggested that he stop to talk to the police reached into
his backpack, pulled out a can of bear repellent, and tried to spray Mr. Lucia who ran away and then
came back, because he realized Mr. Ogden was not going to stop, and he tackled him. Mr. Ogden fell
backwards, landed on his backpack, took that off, and began chasing Mr. Lucia and spraying him with
the bear repellent.
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This is what was happening when Officer Pacheco came close enough to them. At that point,
Officer Pacheco instructed Charles Benson Ogden to drop the bear repellent.
In response
Officer Pacheco was sprayed repeatedly with bear repellent. It has sort of a mustard yellow color to it.
So, it's something that Mr. Lucia could see covering Officer Pacheco's entire head. Officer Pacheco
aimed his firearm at Mr. Ogden. He ordered him to stop repeatedly, ordered him to get back which he
would not do. Instead, Mr. Ogden continued charging towards the officer continuously spraying him.
Because Officer Pacheco could no longer see due to this bear repellent he did fire a number of shots and
eventually Mr. Ogden was declared deceased.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Lutey. Committee Members, any questions in open session for
Corporation Counsel? Seeing none. Chief Phillips, do you care to make any comments at this point in
open session on this matter?
MR. PHILLIPS: No. I'm just here in case there's any questions for me. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chief. Members, at this point seeing the sensitive nature of the case the
Chair will entertain a motion to convene in executive session for Committee of the Whole Item 4(9)
pursuant to HRS 92-5A4, to consult with legal counsel on questions and issues pertaining to the powers,
duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities of the County, the Council and the Committee.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, before we-CHAIR MOLINA: Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --and I'm sorry. Is there any Member that wishes to go into Executive Session?
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I know that the Corporation Counsel did state that she felt that she had enough
to provide us open seSSlOn
unless-HH-"UV'U

Okay.
KANE:
exerCIse
So,

sesslOn we
not
I recognize your

.H.IL,-'-.J.J..... .,-,............

to

CHAIR MOLINA: No. No.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --I'd like to see ifthere's anybody, because I have no problem with, I don't need to go
m.

CHAIR MOLINA: Although the Chair has a preference to go into executive session, it will be a decision made
by the body. The Chair will honor the majority of the body. If it is the will of the body not to go into
executive session the Chair will honor that. Committee Members, the floor is open for comment on the
consideration for executive session. Member Anderson.
- 12 -

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council ofthe County of Maui

June 6, 2006

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I have a question, Mr. Chair, and I don't know if it's appropriate for
executive session, but if I ask the question-CHAIR MOLINA: You may proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --of Corp. Counsel. When the officer fired his gun were there other
people in, in the area, in the park area?
MS. LUTEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In the, in the, in the vicinity?
MS. LUTEY: Not, not in his line of fire. John Lucia was present at the area, but he was up towards the houses
on the beach. Officer Pacheco was sort of facing where Star Market would be, and Mr. Ogden was
charging him sort of in the Wailea direction.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But there were not people in the park close by?
MS. LUTEY: It's actually not really a park area. It's more just beach and then private homes fronting it. It's
off of Vlaiohuli Street. \Vhen I was there, there was absolutely no one else on the beach. There were ...
.are other people farther down the beach, but no one in that immediate vicinity, because it's not really an
area where you could have, like, park benches and things. It's private property so close to the beach.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MS. LUTEY: Sure.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Committee Members, any other, is there any request for executive session?
Otherwise .... (change tape). .
. .question, Member
.L.V"...... "

COUNCILMEMBER

....

IS

MOLINA:
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and, and does he have any relationship to the County of Maui?
MS. LUTEY: Councilmember Hokama, John Lucia is a private homeowner. He owns property right off of
Waiohuli Beach. He is also named as a defendant in this matter, but there is no relationship between
him and the County.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. The, the fact that they list John Does 1 to 10 and Doe Entities 1 to 5,
but they cannot specifically state the individuals or entities at this time in this filing that we have a copy
of, can you tell us do they exist and what are their names?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Councilmember Hokama, that's something that's standardly done in State Court,
because it's, when you file a lawsuit a lot of the times you don't have all of the information, and so you
would substitute later on someone that you know who should be named as a defendant for John Doe 1 or
a corporation, if that's the case. In this particular matter, I don't believe that there would be any other
defendants.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. What is the plaintiff relying on to, regarding this suit? It's based on
a police report? What is it being based on since, from what I can read, the plaintiff on behalf of the
Estate wasn't at the scene?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Councilmember Hokama, we did release a copy of the police report to them, and so
I believe some of that is from the police report. Some of it may also be from the newspaper. I'm really
not quite sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Are you recommending to us that through this requested action that
we will go to Court and litigate this case, continue to litigate?
MS. LUTEY: May I?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Councilmember Hokama, at this point I'm really just seeking indemnification of
Officer Pacheco. That's the only thing we have on the agenda today, but this is a matter that is in
litigation.
HOKAMA:
have you already
your
court process?

"-'.u.JJ. .....uJ."''-'-'-'-,-'-''-

us

stage .. .is it
you, can you state

MOLINA:
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Councilmember Hokama, at this point the County has filed a motion to dismiss.
Basically, we're challenging standing of the brother to be bringing this lawsuit on behalf of the
deceased. We have not filed an answer at this point, because we have filed that motion to dismiss and
that will be heard, I believe it's at the end of JUly. Mr. Lucia has been served with his complaint, and
I'm not sure if they'll be joining our motion to dismiss, or whether he'll be filing an answer, but it's
very, very early stages at this point. No discovery has been done.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. As far as the Department is concerned .. .if! may continue?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. As far as the Department is concerned the procedures have
been that Officer Pacheco went through is all standard operating procedures and, and is part of what he
was trained to, how to respond? He performed, he performed within the standard training and practice
of the Maui Police Department?
MS. LUTEY: Councilmember Hokama, he was acting within the course and scope of his employment at the
time. We do train officers on firearm use. Perhaps the Chief would be better able to answer more
technical questions if that's where you're going with this, but in terms of whether or not we believe that
he should be indemnified, our position is that he should be.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. What is the amount of the scope of the suit against the County and
the individuals, are we looking at? Half a million, five million, $50 million; what are we looking at?
MS. LUTEY: Chair Member Hokama, I'm sorry, Councilmember Hokama, in terms of an amount I have not
received a demand from the plaintiffs in this matter, so I don't know how they're valuing this case at this
point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman, I'm, I'm, I'm done at this point.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Committee Members, any other questions in open
session? Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair. The Officer was on duty at the time?
MS. LUTEY: Yes, Councilmember Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. The interaction between Mr. Lucia and the officer is it part of the police report
as his actions
not being instructed by the police
that Mr.
acted on his own behalf as
officer?
MS.

Yes,
KANE: You
your
and was blinded and could not see.
Department?

IS

Officer was
sprayed by bear
Was there an internal investigation done through the Police

MS. LUTEY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And was there a determination of his actions at that point in time regarding him being
blinded and discharging his firearm?
MS. LUTEY: Actually I'm going to defer this one to the Chief.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Chief.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief Phillips.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And while they're conferring, Chair, I recognize that if questions that I'm asking are,
are, cannot be responded to in open session I completely understand that and will make a request at the
appropriate time.
CHAIR MOLINA: So noted.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. PHILLIPS: The investigation, the internal investigation was reviewed, and he was found within
Department policy. There were no charges filed against him, and the, the criminal investigation was
also completed by the Prosecutor's Office, or the review of the criminal investigation and there were no
criminal charges as well filed against the Officer.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chief. Thank you, Corporation Counsel. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Committee Members any other questions in open session for
Corporation Counselor the Police Chief? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Corporation Counsel, do you have further information that you would
distribute to us were we in executive session?
MS. LUTEY: Not at this time, no.
COIJNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have, do you have any knowledge as to whether or not Ben Ogden has
any record of mental illness, had any record?
MS.
is or is not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, and
damages they allege
Ogden was not involved the earlier incident and have you been able to substantiate that one way or
the other?
MS. LUTEY: Councilmember Anderson, I believe that that was something that was investigated, and it's my
understanding that he was, in fact, the person that the officers had been called to the beach to address
initially.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. In regards to Officer Pacheco is, is he back on full
duty, and what is his impairment, if any, in regards to his vision?
MR. PHILLIPS: He is back to full duty, and I, I don't believe he had any permanent impairment. I, I know that
was a concern initially. When I spoke to him three hours after the incident his eyes were as red as
anything I've ever seen. As red as the flag right there, but I, I don't think there's anything permanent,
and he's, he's back to full duty.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Committee Members, any other questions in open
session for Corporation Counselor the Police Department? Member Hokama followed by Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. The, the, in the filing it states, or, or I believe
Corporation Counsel you shared as part of your, your opening verbal comments to this Committee that
the plaintiff's brother continued to spray with bear repellent. In our Police Department's view what is
that considered; a non-lethal weapon, potential lethal weapon? How, how is things like that viewed, and
how is the scope related to the level of the suit against the County?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. LUTEY: Chairperson, I think if we're going to get into this discussion that we should go in executive
session, so we can talk about that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your advice and comment, Corporation Counsel.
Thank you, Chairman. I will honor Corporation Counsel's comment.
MOLINA: Okay.

you, Mr.

.L.lV.l:UUHU.

Member Anderson.
a taser

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
MS.

Councilmember Anderson,
taser he
one, because
could have ignited the deceased.

possession?
to use
it

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And himself.
MS. LUTEY: And himself.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Okay. Committee Members, one last opportunity. The
Chair did have one of his questions answered in open session, so as far as for me I have no request for
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executive session. However, there may have been a question or two that was stated that could require
executive session. The Chair will give the body one last opportunity to make a request for executive
session. If not, the Chair will take action in open session with regard to the resolution to indemnify
Officer Pacheco. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: A question and then that might make up my mind regarding whether or not I
would request executive session, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Proceed, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Lutey,--

Beyond this request, specific before the Committee this morning, Ms.

MS. LUTEY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --anything else your office would need to return back to this Committee
whether it be, or do you envision a need for outside supporting counsel to assist your Department and,
and your efforts to defend the County as well as our Officer?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Councilmember Hokama, that may be the case, but it depends on what happens with
our motion to dismiss. If it's granted, then it wouldn't be necessary.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MS.

PTn/H:p

I would

come

discuss

you.
COUNCILMEMBER
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one more question, Chair. Your motion to dismiss is based on the
fact that the brother does not have standing?
MS. LUTEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is there precedent for that?
MS. LUTEY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. LUTEY: There's actually a statute that discuss it and that's what we're arguing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, in order to, to have standing the family member must be a parent?
MS. LUTEY: Or a spouse or, or your children.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other final questions before the Chair makes his
recommendation? Seeing none. The Chair will entertain a motion to support the proposed resolution
entitled "Indemnifying Clifford Pacheco in Civil No. CV06-00113, Michael David Ogden, as Special
Administrator ofthe Estate of Charles Benson Ogden versus County of Maui, et al.".
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Moved by Member Kane.
COlJNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Member Tavares. Any discussion? Seeing none. All those in favor signify
by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Coundlmembers Anderson,
PontaniHa and

NOES:
ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Members, moving on to our next Item. It's Committee of the Whole Item 5(10), Special
Counsel Authorization, additional compensation for special counsel Kessner, Duca, Umebayashi, Bain
& Matsunaga in Gene V. Williams, Cases No. 7-99-02488 and 7-99-04066.
COW-5(10)

SPECIAL COUNSEL AUTHORIZATION (ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION FOR
SPECIAL COUNSEL KESSNER, DUCA, UMEBAYASHI, BAIN & MATSUNAGA IN
GENE V. WILLIAMS, CASE NOS. 7-99-02488 AND 7-99-04066) ee.c. No. 05-25)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated May 3rd, 2006, from the
Corporation Counsel's office regarding this matter. The purpose of the proposed resolution is to
authorize additional compensation of $2,700 for a total compensation of $15,200 for special counsel
Kessner, Duca, Umebayashi, Bain & Matsunaga in the Gene V. Williams case. At this point, the Chair
will yield the floor to Corporation Counsel Lutey for further comment on this matter.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. This is a case that has been active for quite some time, but everything in it has now
been resolved. We brought in the firm of Kessner, Duca, Umebayashi, Bain & Matsunaga to assist,
because this was actually a worker's compensation claim. Gene Williams was a police officer who was
working for Kiewit Pacific when he was killed while directing traffic.
So, now that the case has been closed we do have our final bills, and it totals $2,700 for a total of,
compensation of $15,200. So, I'm asking for authorization for that final amount.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Lutey. Committee Members, any questions in open session on this
matter? Seeing none. The Chair will make his recommendation which is to support the proposed
resolution.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Moved by .'-u,-un,...,... Kane. Seconded by

Tavares.

MOLINA: Okay. Member
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just for the record does this bring full closure to this specific case?
MS. LUTEY: Yes, Councilmember Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions before the vote? Seeing none. All those in favor
signify by saying aye.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, at this point the Chair would like to take a brief recess. The Chair would
like to reconvene at ten o'clock. So, this Committee of the Whole Meeting for June 6th is in recess ....
(gavel) . ..

RECESS:

9:49 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:04 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) . .. The Committee of the Whole Meeting for June 6, 2006, is now back in
seSSIOn. Thank you very much
that break, Members. We're now, we are now on Committee of the
Whole
COW-46, Charter Amendment to Establish an Affordable Housing

No. 06-62)

MOLINA:
is
receipt
No. 06-62
Chair transmitting a proposed resolution to initiate an amendment to the Revised Charter of the County
of Maui (1983), As Amended, to establish an affordable housing fund and require that the Council
appropriate a minimum of two percent of real property tax revenue to the fund for building and
expanding affordable housing.
Number two, a correspondence dated May 26,2006, from the Corporation Counsel's Office transmitting
a revised proposed resolution entitled "Proposing Amendments to the Revised Charter of the County of
Maui (1983), As Amended, Pertaining to Establishing an Affordable Housing Fund". The purpose of
the revised proposed resolution is to initiate the referenced Charter amendment and to also incorporate
the wording of the proposed ballot question.
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And the Chair would just like to make a few brief opening comments before opening the floor up for
comments from the Corporation Counsel and the Administration as well as you, Members. First of all,
the two percent is, again, to set aside two percent not to, I guess, hit the public with an, an additional two
percent tax. So, I wanted to make that clear. It is to set aside two percent. And with regards to this
proposal it is based on the current rate of revenue at two percent. An estimated $3.2 million a year could
be set aside for the purposes of setting aside land for affordable housing or the rehabilitation of existing
sites.
Our electorate would be the final decision makers of this proposal should we decided to pass this out of
Committee, and then decided by the full Counci1. Recent surveys in our County have shown the
availability of affordable housing to be our community's number one concern. This proposal in your
Chair's opinion could serve as an additional tool that could help reduce this crisis.
Now, this body has responded to the housing crisis thus far by providing for a Rental Assistance Fund, a
First Time Homebuyers Fund, and a Residential Workforce Housing Policy out of Mr. Mateo's
Committee, which is a critical work in progress currently up for review by the Planning Commission.
Finding solutions to the housing crisis will require the participation of many different groups. For those
of you who attended the various housing conferences both here in the State of Hawaii and on the
mainland, one of the underlying themes was to have everyone involved from profit and non-profit
entities, developers, housing task force groups, faith-based groups, Government, and everyone else in
the community affected by this particular matter.
So, at this point the Chair's comments would be to ask for your thoughts on this and get some feedback
from you. We've had some good testimony here today with some suggestions that the Committee could
consider if it is the will of this body to pass this matter out and present it before the electorate on the
ballot. So, at this point the Chair would like to yield the floor first to the Administration to give some
opening comments on this, and then to be followed by any additional comments from the Members or
questions. We have Mr. DeLeon from the Mayor's office, as well as Ms. Lee from the Department of
Housing and
Concerns.
Good

a
the Mayor
Mayor's comments were
you heard from Maui Tomorrow and, and
representative
MEO
they're
of concerned about locking the Charter a
amount
because it, that takes away the flexibility for a particular use.
The Mayor senses that the Council is moving in the right direction with that effort to, to lock in a certain
requirement for a project to produce affordable housing, and for the other work being done out of
Mr. Mateo's Committee has really moved forward a variety of ideas that will help this. And while, of
course, we need to put money toward affordable housing and, of course, it's a monstrous requirement
that our community has locking in now for say 10 to 15 years from now, we might find ourselves in a
different situation. And two percent of your budget will be locked into something that you will. .
.someone made mention of the hurricane fund and how, how the State found itself raiding the hurricane
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fund. You might be finding yourself in the same situation down the way, you know, if, if, if this thing
isn't written broad enough, the bill isn't used in a very broad manner.
The Mayor cautioned he did not want to make it sound like he opposes this concept, he's just raising
these issues as, as his concern. The numbers he, the information he asked me to pass out, this is
indication of some of the numbers that could be produced in the market place, not all those projects will
actually produce actual houses, but it's an indication of the, the volume that could be possible, and we
could find ourselves with more affordable housing than the market could bear in ten years, and it's hard
to conceive while we sit here now with the, with the hole we're in, but, you know, ten years is ten years
and things change.
So, he just asked that I raise these points and that, that it be looked at in consideration when you think
about it. And that's why the Maui Tomorrow and MEO comments resonated, because, you know, it's a
lot better way to do this in the County Code as opposed in the Charter.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Members, before I recognize or ask the floor for any
questions, Director Lee, would you have any comments?
MS. LEE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Members. As Mr. DeLeon mentioned, we are in support of
the proposed ordinance whether you want to put it in the form of a Charter amendment or an ordinance
that's, that for us needs to be discussed, but we are very much in support of a dedicated source of
revenues for affordable housing, and that would be accomplished with either a Charter amendment or a
County Code.
The other point we wanted to make is that when, when the fund is established that it be flexible and not
be restrictive. In other words, funds could be used for repairs, renovations there, in a very short time, all
the, the units that we've helped to create over, over the years such as Charlie Ridings' resource center in
Wailuku, Luana Gardens. All the affordable units will be needing repairs and renovation.
So,
would be perfect
a source
funding. Also, it's important that
for the
fund not be restricted so
you could include expenditures on environmental assessments and so forth.
of things
Sometimes
the wording is so specific it
a
housing projects affordable. So,
are
basic comments we
MOLINA: Okay.
Lee. Okay.
this
floor up for questions to the Administration. Comments, Member Anderson.

Chair

open

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Ms. Lee, you mentioned-CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Member Anderson, can you bring up your mike a little bit so we can hear you?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: There you go.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ms. Lee, is it, oh, here we go. You mentioned Luana Gardens. Does the
County still have any involvement with that project?
MS. LEE: No, we don't, but it is an affordable housing project that we would want to support in the future,
because it's, it's a project that is affordable in perpetuity. So, I would imagine that Hale Mahaolu will
need some kind of assistance in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, are you saying Hale Mahaolu administers Luana Gardens?
MS. LEE: They own the project. The project was sold to them by the County a couple of years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. And so, any of the affordable housing projects that the County did
in the past, does the County have any involvement with them in regards to keeping the property in
affordable use, or have they all passed on to homeowner. .. homeownership strictly?
MS. LEE: We have one rental project in Kihei, Komohana Hale. The rest of the fee simple projects are, are
pretty much no longer under the control of the County, but the affordables that I'm talking about are the
affordables that we have partnered with non-profits over the years to create affordable housing. Even
though we may not have control or ownership of these projects I'm sure they're going to need County
assistance.
For instance, Luana Gardens and many of the Hale Mahaolu senior apartments are rented at way below
market. So, there, there aren't enough funds in the project to generate enough funds to, to do major and
wholesale repairs and renovations.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, as far as any of the affordable projects that the County did in the past,
I'm not talking about those that have been converted to senior or special needs, I'm talking about just
straight workforce affordable housing such as Skill Village, up by Skill Village. None of those had any
kind of perpetuity clause?
MS.

No,

Village

back clause.

MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just a point of clarification - isn't Komohana Hale in Lahaina and not
Kihei?
MS. LEE: I didn't, did I say Kihei?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MS. LEE: I'm sorry, I should have said Lahaina.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, questions? Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. In, in regards to the existing senior housings that we
have here in Maui County do you have any idea, or maybe you can get this information in regards to
how much does it cost to maintain those buildings presently? And, and probably information can be
gotten from Hale Mahaolu as well as the Charlie Ridings project, because when I look at this I'm
envisioning in my mind is that we're purchasing old buildings, rehabbing old buildings for affordable
use. And in, in the resolution itself it says low and moderate income.
So, I'm, I'm looking at rehabilitating existing buildings for, you know, low or moderate income people
and the possibility of land acquisition. In this land acquisition I, I know we still need to do, you know,
the ordinance in regards to when we purchase land. You know, would it be fee simple, would it, would
it be leased land, things like that to make it affordable, you know, for the life of the monies that we're
going to be spending. The information that, you know, I, I want though is, you know, how much does it
cost to, on an annual basis, by these two groups in repairing or maintaining their existing structure, and
what I hate to see is monies taken from this fund to do that type of work.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Director Lee.
MS. LEE: Mr. Chair, Council Member I would imagine that after you create the fund, the Council will still
have the power of appropriation. So, the Administration would have to come before the Council in
order to request appropriations, and at that time you can decide whether or not the, the request is
appropriate and however, you know, you want the monies to be spent is how the Administration would
implement the fund. And, yes, we could get, we could ask Hale Mahaolu and Mr. Ridings for
information on repairs and maintenance and, and, and their reserve funds for these functions.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
Okay.

you, Member POlltaJrllHa. Members,

Yes,
you.
is set
amendment, or a Charter provision, or an
Code, can this
fund be used to pay debt service for, like, the purchase land
not pay the
you know, say the
piece of property is $5 million, could this fund be used to pay the debt service if there was a GO Bond
floated for the purchase of the acquisition?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Members. The fund that's created and its purposes will, of
course, its characteristics and uses will be defined by the ordinance or Charter amendment that creates it.
Yes, monies could be used from that fund providing the, the enabling legislation said so. It could be
used for land acquisition costs. It in theory could be used to be dedicated for payments of bond principal
and interest.
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I'm not sure, however, it would be to the County's advantage to specifically designate.. .(change
tape) . .. those monies for bond debt service, because you see under the Internal Revenue Service rules a,
any, any fund that is dedicated to the payment of principal and interest may become subject to the
arbitrage rules meaning that the income from monies in that fund cannot exceed a certain amount, and
you have to keep track of that. And then any earnings in excess of that amount may have to be rebated
to the Internal Revenue Service.
So, for those tax reasons, municipalities would probably want to avoid specifically designating the
monies in the fund as it, as for debt service, but rather just simply say that it can be used to acquire
lands. Monies from the fund probably could be dispersed or appropriated on an annual basis out of the
fund to help and to be transferred to the, to the County's debt service fund which is a separate fund-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. MOTO: --that the Finance Department keeps track of. We would consult with our bond counsel to ensure
whether that would allow us to avoid the consequences of arbitrage limitations.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh. Because I'm just, you know, looking at it when we're talking
about the percentage of the dedica... , dedication of revenues that if we're purchasing land that land is
for, you know, forever. And rather than paying the, the sale price right then and there all cash, because
there is a benefit over numbers of years that this would be a candidate for a bond, because it has a life of
longer than 30 years or whatever.
So, if we had that flexibility then the leveraging of the percentage of revenues going in there is greater.
So, if it comes out that we cannot or should not use these funds for the purpose of buying under a bond
situation then we might want to look at a larger percentage coming from the, the revenue stream to be
dedicated to this fund, you know, with a sunset or something like that, because after you get a land bank
or have land in your bank, then you can go forward with other, you know, other projects. So, that was
my,
reason for
question. So, thank you for the response.
Okay.

you,

HA.,",'AUU

Tavares.

I, I have a
questions please.
me
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman,
foHow-up on, on something
colleague
Upcountry just brought up now regarding
banking.
I believe it currently exists as part of one of the provisions or articles of the State Constitution regarding
the ability of the State to land bank for public purposes. Would that also be able to cover the County's
initiative to, to move forward in a similar matter, Mr., Mr. Moto, or would we need separate Charter
authorization or ordinance development regarding those languages in the Amended State Constitution of
'78?
MR. MOTO: I, I vaguely recall the, the State provision. I'm, I'm just, right off the top of my head I just don't
know the details enough to, to speak to the issue. I don't recall the specific language that well.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, that's fine. I was just wondering if maybe you were able to
give us some comments this morning. But let me ask these questions regarding what we currently have
available and maybe Mr. DeLeon or Ms. Lee can share, share their thoughts and comments. My
question is are those three programs that have been existing for a long time such as the Chapter 3.32,
Mr. Moto and Ms. Lee, that's our housing internal financing and buy back revolving fund. I believe
Council created that in the late '70s, funding that at the tune of$35 million.
So, maybe you can give us some comments on why that fund now may not be the applicable fund,
maybe what type of revisions we may want to consider to make sure that that fund continues to address
the current situations, or you might recommend terminating the fund and deleting it from the Code since
it doesn't serve its purpose anymore. Any comments please?
CHAIR MOLINA: Director Lee.
MS. LEE: Yes, thank you, Council Member. We would prefer that you don't delete the fund, because we're
going to be coming to you in the next month or so to ask that, to, to update the fund to revise it, delete
all the unnecessary projects that have been completed over the years, and to include our, our project that
will be located in Kahului; the Housing Division Office and, and Senior Housing Project.
That fund is really, there's no cash in that fund. It's a credit line that's authorized $35 million in the
credit line. So, it would operate as a loan when and if, when and if used. We're, we're hoping that, that
we can use that credit line to begin our project, the, the construction of our project, and then get long
term financing maybe in a year, year and a half from now. So, this is, that issue needs to be discussed
and brought to the Council, and we will be doing that in the next couple of months.
But as far as that credit line having to do, being excessive or not necessary, because of this proposed
housing fund we believe that the two are necessary, because one is just a credit line and the other one
will actually have funds available for land acquisition, for what, for whatever the need may be with
regard to affordable housing. And the credit line also is for County projects. It's not for a nonprofit.
or
MS.

IS

HHU"-D.,VV

a

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
County paid back?

was

was

repaid? Was

or

MS. LEE: The banks were paid back.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You can verify that for us?
MS. LEE: Yes, I can. I came in as Director when we, when the Department had about 11 more homes to sell.
And so, we, with the proceeds from the sales we paid back the fund and there, there's nothing due on
that fund.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. That's, I have my own thoughts on that project, but that's for another
day. Can you tell us what is the status and why the Rental Housing Development Revolving Fund may
not be working to the degree that we would like it to be to develop rental housing? That's Chapter 3.34,
Ms. Lee, and I know you're very much aware of the Codes. So, maybe you can give us some thoughts
on revisions to the, to the Code or the fund that could make it achieve rental housing development.
MS. LEE: Well, that fund was created, as you know, many years ago when the County was developing
housing. And the County stopped developing housing under the Lingle Administration, except for
Makawao Highlands. So, that, that list that's included in the Code is, is really no longer relevant. Most
of the projects are completed. In fact, all of the projects have been completed and their names need to
be deleted. So, that's one thing that we were planning to do as soon as our project is ready to corne
before you, so that we can add our project name and delete all the not relevant projects from that, that
list.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, let me get this correct, Ms. Lee, if we did add additional projects that
were proposed by, by your Department or through the Mayor's Office, then this current fund could have
been utilized to help develop additional rental housing currently.
MS. LEE: If the County was developing housing, yes, but you need to remember that it's a credit line and
attached to a credit line is an interest. So, it, it, it's not like a, a bond fund where the interest might be
three and half, four percent. You're talking about, you know, going through a commercial bank. We
would have to pay in the neighborhood of maybe six, seven percent. So, there's a big difference
between a credit line of, of that sort and what you're establishing, which is basically a cash fund where
there is no, there's, there's no interest payments.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. And, and I think your comment is, is, you know, accurate, but yet
two years ago the interest was very low, and we still didn't do projects. So, again, my question is what
do we need to do with the existing funds we have established in the Code to maybe make it work better,
or revise it again, or delete it and create a new fund to meet the current times? But one thing that we
have utilized
past,
I think Kualapuu on Molokai,
Mateo is aware that has worked, is the
H~"vH<"U housing
Code Chapter 16.28.
us
or
comments
more to maybe
convert, what is our phrase, legal nOlt1CCmrlornmn,g
horne purchases in old plantation camps or
option regarding housing?
~u,,'~~'~

MS. LEE: Well, the project at Kualapuu, I think the people there, if they had any voice in future projects,
would probably advise the County not ever to do one like that again, because to keep the costs down the
infrastructure there was substandard, and they, the people, had to deal with that substandard situation for
many years.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
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MS. LEE: So, I, I really don't believe that we should, that was an experiment and, and we tried it, not when any
of us were here, but by earlier Administrations. And I think today what we've all learned is it, we can't,
we can't even in the name of affordable housing build, or create, or, or, or have a part in establishing
affordable housing that's substandard, because somewhere along the line we're going to have to pay,
you know, to upgrade the facilities in that subdivision.
I, I don't believe that, that we should ever engage ourselves in, in creating another Kualapuu. And
mainly because I, I think the people there suffered many years with not having what normal other types
of subdivisions would have. And I see that as a mistake, but a good lesson for all of us.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. And I appreciate your comments, but I believe if you check the
actions the key was homeownership and those tenants at the time were tenants, the plantation, I think
that was Del Monte preferred homeownership versus tenancy of rental. And I agree, you know, one of
the areas of, that they had to make a decision on was, of course, the substandard road within the
Kualapuu community.
So, the question came do we want to offer those people, because they were on legal non-conforming
lots, and did not meet subdivision standards, what do you do with that community per se. And it's, like,
the old Maunaloa on West Molokai. You know, and I deal with it on Lanai all the time. I got people on
3,000 square foot lots - legal nonconforming uses. But, you know, even on Lanai we went through the
201G last term and the people bought legal nonconforming lots, because they wanted ownership.
I just bring up these things, Mr. Chairman, because, you know, we've tried many different ways to
address housing in various different times in this County. Some of them that have worked during that
time may not apply now. I think we need to look at what we already have existing on our books and see
whether or not revisions to those Chapters make sense. We take another consideration such as your
option before us this morning, but, Chairman, I prefer the ordinance process and routing, you know.
were, I guess, with us couple terms ago, the road was the key one especially for South Maui. We
addressed it in budget, we worked
the State. While transportation is still a concern the priority has
lowered, because we
come forward and addressed it through various mechanisms including
funding. And for me
issue, Mr.
can throw a lot of money
at this issue,
concern
facing
Committee
Islands
not necessarily it
the resident, or what they
So, I would say at this point, Chairman, that I appreciate my opportunity, and I, I thank you for your
proposal to us, but I believe the ordinance process is the right method for us to move forward on this
one. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your comments, Member Hokama. Member Johnson, followed by
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chairman. On the last comment that was made by Chair Hokama,
I also concur that I would, I would prefer to have the flexibility that's contained within an ordinance and
the ability to respond to the changing needs that exist in the community. I think that the questions that
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are also posed by Mr. Michaels and also Ms. Higgins are important to answer, because when we put the
Charter amendment on with regard to water we thought we had a lock on everything and years later it's
kind of, you know, we're now under Ms. Anderson finally getting down to the nitty-gritty.
So, I don't want this to also happen in a parallel with regard to affordable housing, because it is an
immediate need. I totally support your thrust and the purpose and intent which is creating the fund. I
think that for me that is really paramount, and also to establish areas of need, where the monies should
actually be utilized, if South and West Maui are the most critical or the most challenging. I know, for
example, West Maui has tremendous needs, but it also is the most challenging, because the cost of land
is so high.
So, I think this is one more area, and I applaud you for bringing the measure forward. I just personally
would prefer to do it by ordinance, because I think tweaking an ordinance or responding to maybe some
little glitches that we did not anticipate is perhaps a more meaningful way to go. The Charter, I think, is
a little more cumbersome although I think statistically we'll find that almost every Charter amend ... ,
amendment that's been proposed has a better chance of passage. I think that's great, but I also think that
the ordinance is really important.
So, I noted that we didn't get a response from Corporation Counsel to the question that you had posed, I
think, in your April 18th or 19th memo, but my assumption is by the comments made that ordinance is
also possible. So, Mr. Chair, I, I think that if we can begin with that and do that in the form of an
ordinance I am totally behind that. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Well, first of all, I did, I did want to mention that
these maps are quite helpful. I don't know if Members had had a chance to look at it, but the
Department of Finance provided these maps to us for County-owned property that could possibly be
used to build affordable housing. Who knew? With the TMK list, and I, I certainly think that's worth
exploration.
wondering because
ordinance to establish
for
and also that any appropriations to this fund
not substitute,
appropriations historically made
purposes stated
the rental fund.
So, my question is in order for us to further develop whether we go by ordinance or Charter amendment
for this fund that you want to establish would the details, I'd like to see the details before we make the
big decision. So, would the details be worked out in Member Mateo's Committee, and have you
discussed that with him?
CHAIR MOLINA: That's a good question, Member Anderson. At this point, it's difficult for me to answer
that at this time. It, it would seem logical that you could have the details in appropriate Council
Committee. I would guess that is one venue. I don't know if maybe Corporation Counsel could offer a
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comment on that as well. Member Anderson, would you like to pose that question to Corporation
Counselor the Council Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, maybe let's just ask Mr. Mateo ifhe'd be willing to take it up-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --because to me this is, I mean I, I like the provisions that you have in this
Section 9-20, in regards to how the money will be spent. I think it's rather broad. And my next question
will be to Corp. Counsel, because there is a reference to the issuance of bonds, and I'm not sure if he
said that this is not appropriate for this funding source or not, but if that's the case, then we're going to
have to reword that, but right now for, for my purposes for the next questions I'm going to ask maybe
Councilmember Mateo has looked at Section 4 of the resolution regarding the establishment of
procedures for the Administration and, and expenditure of the revenues, and if he would be willing to
take that up in his Committee.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Mateo, do you care to respond?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And obviously we would be. I would be
interested in doing anything we can to help expedite a process if the end result is affordable housing.
So, our Committee is, you know, well the Chairman is going to speak on behalf of the Committee and
say we're ready. We're ready to do what we need to do to end up with the product.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Mateo. And I think the, the intent here is first to get the
funding and then the parameters can be worked out much like I believe the First Time Homebuyers
Fund when we initiated just getting the funding to the Budget Committee, and then the parameters were
worked out in Mr. Mateo's Committee. I guess that would be following along those lines.
Member Anderson.
Great, because, you know,
the Chapter
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
way, Ms. Lee, I like
allows for
revolving
projects are
because, you
wow, look at
we
So, I don't
why we can't go back
do it again.
fact, I mean
Code.
and I would not have
about these projects

pre-dates me,

So, I'm thinking that, excuse me, that there's some way we can marry this fund with that other fund, the
revolving fund, so that we're leveraging the money. And the revolving fund allows us to go out to bond
not just necessarily to a bank, but to issue bonds. So, that's another funding source that we just have not
exercised and we're totally authorized to do it.
So, and the fact that we do have some County land available I, I think that in any attempt to rewrite the
revolving fund, revolving loan fund chapter we have to look at it in conjunction with this. And when we
adopt Administrative procedures and whatever type of, you know, expenditures that are going to be
authorized with this fund we should look at it in the context of the authority we have to develop a
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revolving fund, because, you know, the more you can utilize the money and revolve it the more you end
up with. And, and I think taxpayers want to see that. They don't want to see the money just, you know,
spent once and that's it. You know, people are still going to be buying these houses, so we're going to
get paid back for whatever we expend to some extent. There may be expenditures that we're going to
have to just eat in order to accomplish what we want, but as far as the end product goes that will be a
pay back.
And so, I'd like to see us be able to put that money into some kind of a revolving fund whether it's the
one on, in Chapters 3.32 or not. And, and I also agree with Mr. Hokama. We need to use
Chapter 16.28, experimental housing, because that gives us a lot of leeway that we wouldn't normally
have as far as permitting and what not, impact fees and all of that. So, I'm hoping that whatever we do
in this Committee, Mr. Chair, in regards to this resolution that the information that was forwarded to this
Committee from the Finance Department then gets transferred to Mr. Mateo's Committee, so that we
have it there for use when we further develop this.
You know, this was approved as to form and legality already, so I might ask Corp. Counsel to just kind
of reiterate his concerns if he had a chance to look at the last paragraph in Section 1 regarding the
issuance of bonds. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Mr., Mr. Chairman, yes, I have reviewed that last sentence in Section 1, and if this matter, for
example, is referred to another Committee then I, I would recommend that that language be taken
another look at, because, and that a bond counsel be consulted in anticipation of any such meeting,
because we would want to make sure what the potential Federal income tax consequences would be if,
if, if the fund were to include language that explicitly provided that the fund would be used to pay
principal and interest on tax exempt municipal bonds.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Then I guess we need to have some further information on
to make sure
we're not
ourselves
comer.

Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
other thing I have a problem with, Mr. Chair, and
if Members want to follow, it's in Section 1 where we actually state how this, who this fund will be
utilized for. And it states: the revenues in this fund shall be utilized for the provision and expansion of
affordable housing and suitable living environments for persons oflow and moderate income which may
include, and then it goes on to say what the vary... , various uses would be. And by the way, Ms. Lee, it
does say planning and design, and I think that that would include an environmental assessment or any
kind of permitting that would be necessary.
But my concerns, Mr. Chair, is that we are starting with low income. And low income as it currently
reads in our County Code is anybody above 50 percent to 80 percent. And in Mr. Mateo's bill that is
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currently coming through it also says low income is 50, above 50 percent to 80 percent. Now, I know
people still don't believe this, but 69-point some percent of our resident population make 100 percent
and below the median income. And, you know, that is, is established by our own Department of
Business and Economic Development Statistics.
So, my concern is that we're cutting out a whole vital segment of our population who are workforce
residents. Because mind you we are predominantly a service industry, and those people generally make,
a good portion of them generally make minimum wage. So, I think we need to include the very low
income which is 50 percent or less. And remember affordable housing as it was originally developed
and conceived by the Housing and Urban Development Corporation of the Federal Government, of
which we get a lot of money, it was conceived for the very low income people.
And just because our real estate market has gone off the charts is no reaSOn to ignore that segment of our
population. They're still a vital, working population of our community, and they deserve housing. They
deserve a piece of the American dream just like anybody else. So, they have families. They shouldn't
.. .(change tape) . .. have to rent a home for the rest of their lives or rent an apartment for the rest of their
lives. That's what affordable housing is for is to sub ... , subsidize the low income workforce housing
especially of our communities.
So, I would like to see us broaden it to say very low income to moderate income. And moderate income
is up to 120 percent which is, I might be wrong on this and Ms. Lee can correct me, but I believe that is
the top ofHUD's guidelines. They only go to 120 percent; is that correct, Ms. Lee?
MS. LEE: No, 140.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 140?
MS. LEE: Well, not really. It, it, there's a matrix that goes all the way up to over 200 percent. But if you're
following the, let's say if you, if you want to be consistent with the proposed housing ordinance from
Mr. Mateo's committee, moderate
is defined as more than 100 percent,
not more
120.
So,
want to go
to moderate
be,
be the
below.
ANDERSON:
So,
I
to change
language
persons to workforce residents, because that's who we're addressing
our housing policy right now.
persons is pretty broad. You
I
that we have plenty
And, you know, I don't
nonprofits who are working to establish housing for our senior population. And, and so, I would hate to
see this fund being used for senior housing when we are so desperately in need of housing for our
workforce popUlation.
And so, I'm in favor of changing the language from persons to workforce residents of very low to
moderate income. And then I, I also am basically, I mean I know we have a way to go with this,
Mr. Chair, and I appreciate your intention in making this a Charter amendment, but we also have some
other Charter amendments coming up that could very well pass. One being a major tax reform, and I
think that we need to have some flexibility so that should we have to adjust things we don't need to go
through a Charter amendment to do it. We can just do it by ordinance.
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And I think the intention of all the Members in this Council is to, you know, pursue this fund. So, I, I
don't think that there would be a problem in getting the support of the Council should it be necessary to
tweak it out, you know, as we go along, but a Charter forecloses that opportunity. A Charter amendment
really forecloses that opportunity. So, I think at this point I'm going to weigh in on the favor of an
ordinance unless, you know, further discussion down the road shows that it's more important that we
have, that we have a Charter amendment.
So, I'm just going to leave it at that, and I thank you very much for bringing this forward, forward
Mr. Chairman. It's just another tool we can put in our bag, but I think we also have some existing tools
that we haven't yet utilized. One being, you know, the revolving fund, the credit line for the revolving
fund that we have which hasn't been utilized since .. .I mean Makawao Highlands, you know, I think
kind of soured everybody from using this fund. And that's unfortunate, because there are at least
15 other projects that we did quite successfully using this fund.
And, you know, maybe the money that we get out of this can be used to purchase land, maybe assist in
any kind of infrastructure needs that we might be faced with, because the property may not be where
there is existing infrastructure. Whatever it might be. But this revolving fund we could use that to
actually develop the housing, and I see no reason why the County cannot be a player in this. You know,
we talked during budget that construction is so fast paced on Maui right now that we can't take care of
our own public facility needs, because the construction companies are just too busy. And, you know,
they're charging us an arm and a leg to get in line just to be able to, to provide those kinds of facilities.
And the Chair even mentioned maybe it's time we get our own construction division within the County.
I know that there are contractors and builders who are in retirement who would come out of retirement,
Mr. Chairman, to build affordable housing for this County. So, I think we need to use all these tools,
and I think we can solve this problem and not be narrow to just one direction. Mr. Mateo's ordinance
right now is a big step in the right direction, but you know what, Mr. Chairman, it takes the cooperation
of developers. They're the ones that are going to actually build the housing out of that ordinance.
This
you're developing
affordable housing
support of what you're attempting,
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson, for your comments. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And like, like the rest of the Members thank
you for bringing this forward for, for discussion at this particular point. I, I'm kind of excited about the
opportunity of looking at a designated source. I think we're, we all understand the reality that in order
to make affordable housing processes work, in order to make affordable housing a reality one of the, one
of the definite needs is a designated source of revenue.
I, at this particular point we still need to have the discussion on what is the accurate or the correct
percentage that we're using to designate for affordable housing. In, in looking at the, the proposal that,
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that you've submitted for our consideration, Mr. Chairman, I, I would like to see consistency between
this proposal and the Residential Workforce Housing Policy that is currently being looked at and
discussed by the various Planning Commissions.
One of, one of the items that I would like to see consistency in would be exactly what
Member Anderson referenced and that is who would benefit by this particular fund in terms of the
persons eligible for, for the program. And I also would like to see available perhaps a window
consistent with the policy or even a longer duration. The policy requires a three-year window for a
review. And as Mr. DeLeon had mentioned, you, you know, there might be a time, and he's a lot more
optimistic than I am, that around the corner we might not need, we might not have a need for affordable
homes in terms of the needs for additional construction. So, with a window of opportunity of reviewing
we'd have the, the options of repealing, or we'd have the options of lessening requirements, but we will
have a review process.
What also needs to be added would be a review of, a review requirement that will tell us where we're at,
you know, say after three years or after five years. We also need to understand who is going to
administer this particular fund, and, and we kind of, like, know that, you know, Ms. Lee will playa real
vital part in the administering of this particular fund, but we need to be able to understand all of those
ramifications and what the impacts might be.
I just attended a conference in Sacramento a couple of weeks ago, and I, I think it's so timely, because
one of the major discussions that was held at, at that particular conference was how do municipalities
commit or provide some kind of assurance that dedicated resources will be available in helping to
address the affordable needs. And this, this sitting body has been very, very proactive, because a lot of,
a lot of our affordable housing needs has been Council generated. And I think it just adds to the
integrity and to the commitment of this body, because we have taken on that elephant or, or that major
problem. And we continue to demonstrate our commitment to address it, and we continue to look at
creative means of making funds available. And that's a real important component, creative financing of
getting
job done.
is an opportunity or an example
addressing
affordable
people sitting
of us,
talked about uu,-un"u,. lUlllomlg
available to
apply
is now coming to
And we just
to
pieces together,
right direction including, including this proposal you have submitted to us.

had our
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I think initially I had looked at the Charter amendment process as being transparent and by allowing the
public the opportunity to comment via their vote essentially, but in going through the affordable housing
process that we just went through I think the ordinance process allows us the opportunity to make
changes and to work on a much faster basis without having that burdensome process of going back to
the public for vote all over again. I think the ordinance process might serve us better in terms of a
timetable in getting processes in place. And I thank you for the opportunity to comment, Chair. Thank
you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
Member Tavares.

Thank you, Member Mateo.

Committee Members, any other comments?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I, I too like the others really appreciate
your bringing this forward. I think that the, the County in its desire to produce affordable housing has
tried some different things, and, and they've been good that we tried them, and I think we've learned
from some of those experiences. And like Ms. Lee was telling us that, you know, we learned some
valuable lessons with some of those projects. It's, it's better to try and, and, you know, what is the
saying it's better to, well never mind ... .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Love and ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't want to go there. But I think that this is another way that we can get
there. I believe that having a revenue source, a dedicated revenue source is key to making something
like this work. I think that we, we should allow the whole concept of this dedicated fund to be tried, so
to speak, through an ordinance first. And then after a number of years as we see, and tweak it, and
whatever, then that, if it then becomes something that we really want to set up for, for a period of time
through a Charter amendment that we, we do so.
I would caution that if we do a Charter amendment that we do have a sunset on it, a sunset clause,

because it's, it is difficult to go through the Charter process, Charter amendment processes as, as we've
all experienced. But I think this is something we need to, to go forward in. I think part of the reason
why affordable homes are not as available as they should be is that in last, past projects those affordable
homes had buy back clauses that got shorter and shorter and shorter. And it, and it comes down to what
is, becomes a real 800-pound gorilla to manage, but I, I'm very pleased that the Community Land Trust
has surfaced, and I think it's going to be alive and well in our community, and this is one way for us to
look at truly affordable housing and in perpetuity. And to put it in the hands of a Community Land
Trust who is there with a specific purpose to manage these projects and to manage these lands I think
that's the way we need to, to support this partnership.
on several years ago
We had conferences before,
they talked about
housing perpetuity.
for a
I
it was in,
Virginia was one
some more
because as folks, you know, climb
career ladders, or they get started and they work themselves,
you know, up
other types of jobs they are
able to
go to
next level, save
make a
down payment, and buy, you know, almost a market home. But we need those starter homes for our
working, for our working families, or starter dwelling units. And they're, they're not all single family
homes. You know, a lot of people don't want a single family home. Some people do want to just rent,
but they've got to be affordable, and right now the rental market is almost, you know, what you're
paying for rent is almost the same as paying for a mortgage.
So, given that choice I think, yeah, we should be looking at mortgages instead of rents, but, you know,
that's got to be fixed too. But hopefully this is a way that we can get to it. And I applaud your, your
bringing this forward to our attention and to the public's attention. And I believe some, a lot of
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important pieces are starting to fall into place now, and I, I feel very enthusiastic about where we're
going in this County in regards to affordable housing. So, I thank you for that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Tavares. Members, any other comments before the Chair
makes a recommendation? Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair. Just a question to Ms., Ms. Lee, please.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Lee, in your remarks earlier to the body you made a brief reference
about a housing policy shift from what it was to when the Lingle Administration was here. Can you
provide us some additional comments relative to what we have before us, and if this represents a shift
away from what the Lingle Administration brought forward? Are we looking at going back into the
housing business, well, the housing, we building housing, securing land, building housing, managing the
housing, which I think is what were your comments we went away from that in the '90s. Any comments
on that as what you see here relative to that policy shift that took place in the '90s?
MS. LEE: Well, it, it really depends on the Council and the Administration on what that direction should be,
you know, in the future. Right now, I don't see a lot of movement to develop housing by the County.
Again, in spite of the infonnation provided by the Finance Director, we don't really have much land for
housing. We'd have to go out and acquire that land, that's one.
I see this fund as being, of course, it would be beneficial to the County if we started developing our own
housing again. This fund would be a necessity. But this fund could also be used in, in conjunction with
assisting others, nonprofits, etc., to, to create that housing. So, it could be used both ways. I also
wanted to say that, let's see, I just lost the thought, and it was pretty important. So, let's see if I can
bring it back. Can, can you kind of just repeat a little part of your question, so I can try and get my
thoughts back?
you brought forward
County's policies towards housing, affordable housing.
to
managing housing, building
a shift
exception of the Makawao Highlands Project.
was a shift away
we
had shifted towards nonprofits and outside
County managing, etc. Do you see, or do you
have comments that are relative to what we have in front of us today? Does this at some point represent
a shift back, or a shift in a different direction, if you will, regarding the County's role in affordable
housing?
MS. LEE: Thank you. To me this, this doesn't represent a shift back, but it could depending on the
Administration and, and the, and the make up of a Council. My understanding is that this would assist
developers of affordable housing, especially those, well, now if you add the very low income to
moderate, but it's low, right now it's low income to moderate. It, it doesn't necessarily represent a shift.

- 37-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

June 6, 2006

There are a couple of things brewing that, that needs to be considered in, in, in the whole context of, of
this new tool, and, and affordable housing in general. First of all, the, the housing ordinance that's
pending before the Planning Commissions and will return to the Council for final action, is a very
important piece oflegislation from Mr. Mateo's Committee. This ordinance has the potential to foster
the creation of hundreds of affordable units, and it has the provisions to keep those units in perpetuity
and affordable for a long period oftime.
So, if that ordinance works and is successful, then I don't see a need for the, for the County to become
involved in the development of affordable housing again. In addition to this impending ordinance you
also have a number of planned units already by sizeable developers of sizeable projects such as Spencer
being, being developed now, the Sterling Kim Project, the, the Maui Lani Project, the A&B Project. If
all these projects carne to be, then there really is no need for the County to create affordable housing as
well. So, our, our job probably would be to help expedite, you know, the processing of these types of
projects.
So, with all the projects being planned now and the impending legislation initiated by the Council I, I
really don't see a burning need for the County to become once again involved with affordable housing.
But if one of these two or the other two things fail, then I would see a need for the County to become
involved again.
VICE-CHAIR K.At~E: Can you be more clear on the one or two things failing, because I heard, I also heard the
word "if' in your comments regarding these projects that are online that could potentially, and I think as
the Admini ... , Administration has represented in a number of different times publicly that, and I think
Mr. DeLeon mentioned in his comments today, that we won't have a unit, affordable unit problem if
things move forward and, and corne to fruition. That there's so many projects out there that if they
succeed, we're not going to have a problem with affordable units available.
So, when you say one or two things fail is, are you representing that if those projects that are online
because of market issues, rising interest rates, projects now become a little bit more unfeasible to get
completed. Is that your reference to not
able to succeed or failing?
are a Hu.laL"..,1
IflT,or"'cct rates, change
for instance, the Council says, okay, no new water sources to
projects move forward, yeah? So, it's, it's a
negative impact, impact on the projects, yeah.
HUJ,UU'-'l

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Lee. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Director Lee, just one follow-up on Member Kane's,
related to Member Kane's question. Now, you, you mentioned if this, this as an ordinance. Are you
saying ordinance or Charter amendment as to having this fund? In, in your comments, I just wanted
clarification.
MS. LEE: I'm sorry. When, you mean, are, are you talking about what my comment, my-- 38-
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CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
MS. LEE: --response to Mr. Kane?
CHAIR MOLINA: Right. Right.
MS. LEE: Well, I was talking about the impending ordinance that was proposed by Mr. Mateo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh. Okay. I'm sorry, the Workforce Housing Policy.
MS. LEE: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I'm sorry. I was just trying to make that differentiation.
MS. LEE: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Okay. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I too would like to say thank you for bringing this
thing forward. If we go with the Charter amendment at least the people of Maui County can vote on it if
really they want affordable housing here in Maui County. But I think what Mr. Hokama had brought out
in regards to the various ordinance that we have on the books that we should take a look at those
ordinances and maybe create an ordinance for, you know, what you want to achieve.
The only other thing that, comment that I would like to make is that the listing that the Finance
Department gave us in regards to County owned lands I think you need to be very careful as far as the
number of acreage that we do have, because when you look at this there's agricultural parks, there's
parks, there's Water Department pump stations. So, basically, I made an inventory a couple years ago
and,
vacant
I saw at that
was
acres
So, be very cautious.

you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
would be a question
Section 1 of the proposed measure where it speaks about, I guess, land acquisition. Could this,
Mr. Moto, also include the way it's worded presently - leases? So that in other words if we were,
instead of purchasing land we were to actual, actually acquire a lease for land for 99 years or whatever it
was, would this enable that?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Moto, can you answer that at this time?
MR. MOTO: Yeah, I, just a few seconds please. I, yes, the precise drafting is perhaps some, again, something
that could be worked on. And it depends on what your intention is. Currently, it may say acquisition of
land, but if you're intention is to make it clear that something less than fee interest can be acquired, then
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you can finesse the language to say something like acquisition of real property interests, because a lease
is an interest in real property. It's not fee title. Easements - the same thing. So, one could modify the
language to encompass as wide or narrow a scope as you desire.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Moto. And, Mr. Chair, I would like to at
least consider the possibility of leasehold, because there may be some land owners who would be
willing for certain considerations to enter into this kind of an agreement where it would not cost us as
much money, and we could put in protections where this land would always be kept affordable in
perpetuity. And particularly where land prices are so expensive I think that we have to keep our options
open and be creative about what we mayor may not be able to afford or acquire. And the leasehold
option would be one way that I could see where we might be able to get a little bit more bang for our
buck over a period of time. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your comments, Member Johnson. Any other comments?
Member Carroll, you have anything you'd like to say prior to the Chair's recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I was just wondering if we do have an updated
inventory regarding Hawaiian Home Lands, the type of developments that they've been creating for
Maui County, not only Maui, but Molokai, as well as Lanai? You know, as they develop their projects
it, it will take away, not take away, provide affordable housing to a lot of Hawaiian natives that live on
three islands. So, we got to be mindful of that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sure. Would you like to make that in the form of a request from Staff to come up with a
list?
COUNCILMEMBER

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

can

CHAIR MOLINA: And as a side note, Staff, we did make a request to DLNR to see what lands are available
for affordable housing, at least State-owned property, and we have yet to receive a response yet from the
State.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, and I do understand that OHA is probably recommending
Department of Hawaii Home Lands in trying to create more affordable housing for those Hawaiian
natives that are less than 50 percent blood quantum. So, maybe we can follow-up on that too.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So noted, Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, at this point prior to the Chair making a recommendation on this
particular item the Chair would like to call for a break. Let's recess and reconvene at 11 :30 ... (gavel) . ..
. . . (change tape) . ..

RECESS:

11:20 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11 :34 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .. .(gavel) . .. Committee of the Whole meeting for June 6, 2006, is now back in session.
Thank you very much, Members, for that break. The Chair would like to offer the Committee a
recommendation as it relates to Committee of the Whole Item 46, as well as Committee of the Whole
Item 44. Due to time constraints we, we, that we have here, we do have a Budget and Finance meeting
coming up at 1:30. The Chair, did mention to you earlier about a possible recess date of Thursday, June
8th, at 9:00 a.m., to take up any agenda items that probably will, in all likelihood, not be addressed
today. 1'd like to ask for your consideration to, I guess, postpone decision making on Committee of the
Whole Item 46, as well as discussion and decision making on Committee of the Whole Item 44, to put
that on our agenda for Thursday should we choose to recess. Any comments on your Chair's
recommendation? Member Pontanilla, followed, followed by Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I'll be there for your 9 o'clock meeting on Thursday.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I, I can also be there too, but I thought it was at 9:30. I thought
the notice that went around was asking our availability for 9:30 on Thursday.
CHAIR MOLINA: 9:30. I, I thought it was at 9:00 a.m.
COUNCILMEMBER

Was it

It was,

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
have an 8:30?

we do it at 9:30, because

I

it was 9:30, so I

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Okay. Members, any objections to the Chair's recommendation of9:30?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Any other comments? And, and for the rest of today I would like to address the, the last,
the Item listed on your agenda which is Committee of the Whole Item 28 for today. Member Carroll,
you had a comment? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I would just like to inform you that I will be requesting to be
excused from your Thursday's meeting.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I will be back home testifying before the State Land Use Commission
regarding a item that the courts have remanded back to the Land Use Commission regarding the Manele
Project District, and, of course, use of our waters from the high level aquifer. So, I apologize, but I need
to be present to provide official testimony. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. No, apologies needed Mr. Hokama. As the representative from your island I'm sure
your voice will be, need to be heard in that area. So, with that being said, Members, so we will try to get
as much as we can done on Committee of the Whole Item 28, and we're looking at a recess date and
time of June 8th, 9:30 a.m., this Thursday to address the other two Items on our agenda.
COW-28

AMENDING CHARTER SECTION 13-6

(C.c. No. 05-215)

CHAIR MOLINA: So, with that being said let us proceed with Committee of the Whole Item 28, which relates
to County Communication No. 05-215 from the Council Chair transmitting a correspondence from the
Corporation Counsel's office recommending initiation of a Charter amendment to repeal Section 13-6,
revised Charter of the County of Maui (1983), As Amended, relating to the filing of claims against the
of Maui.
we, we
a correspondence
November 17, 2005,
a proposed
entitled "Proposing an
to
Revised
County ofMaui 983), As Amended, Repealing Section 13-6, Relating to Claims". The purpose of
proposed resolution is to
Section 13-6 of the
to
against the County ofMaui.
"'HC'HU'U~"A

And third, a correspondence dated April 7, 2006, from the Corporation Counsel's office transmitting a
revised proposed resolution entitled "Proposing an Amendment to the Revised Charter of the County of
Maui (1983), As Amended, Amending Section 13-6, Relating to Claims". The purpose of the revised
proposed resolution is to amend Section 13-6 of the Charter relating to the filing of claims against the
County of Maui and to also incorporate the wording of the proposed ballot question.
So, at this point the Chair will open up the floor for comments. First, I guess, as the initiator of the
proposed Charter amendment, the Chair will open up the floor to Member Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If the Members can recall with the June 1,2005,
memo from Mr. Moto to myself, Mr. Chairman, you will notice that he specifically states a Supreme
Court case--I believe it's called Kahale versus City and County of Honolulu--whereby a decision by that
Court has prompted our Corporation Counsel to provide us with a consideration this morning to clarify
any uncertainties, and to I believe standardize how all the counties will be proceeding regarding to the
filing of claims against said counties. So, I would ask if you allow Mr. Moto, as well as his assistant
Ms. Lutey, Deputy Corporation Lutey, to provide their comments please.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Moto and Ms. Lutey, if you care to comment?
MR. MOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As noted by Council Chair Hokama, last year we transmitted to
Council a memorandum on this subject. And just to, since it's been some time since we last met on this
subject I'll just refresh your memory by saying that in the Supreme Court decision, a copy of which is in
your binder, Kahale versus City and County of Honolulu, the Hawaii Supreme Court overruled 30 years
of precedent and held that tort claims against counties are governed by a six-month statute oflimitations
not, not a two-year statute of limitations.
And to brief, as I discussed in our memo there is currently a conflict. Now, that this Kahale decision has
been rendered by the Supreme Court we now find ourselves in a situation where the Supreme Court has
said one thing and our Charter says another, because Section, currently Section 13-6 of the Charter,
which is on Page 47 of your Charter, says that claims against the County should be filed with the County
Clerk within two years after the date the injury was sustained. And, therefore, given this situation we
recommended that the Council consider a Charter amendment to, to change Section 13-6.
Now, our original proposal was to seek the repeal of, of a good portion of it all. In fact, all, all of 13-6
was proposed to be repealed. At your last meeting, it was suggested that we prepare an alternative
resolution that amends 13-6 rather than repeals it. It will keep most of 13-6 in regarding how claims are
to be filed, but as you can see in this second version what it does is to change the two-year provision and
now it says, it is proposed to say filed with the County Clerk within
period as provided by law.
n was
this way so that
case State
change again, ever, then our County Charter
simply track
State law provides.
Now, there was one thing
happen since our last
was
State
1. And
Legislature this legislative session reviewed
took action on
2208,
this bill, which passed the Legislature, sought to extend the statute of limitation for actions against the
County for damage or injury from six months to two years.
So, the State Legislature passed the bill that basically would have undone the Kahale decision and gave
people additional time to file claims against counties. Now, as I said that bill passed and was presented
to the Governor in April and Governor Lingle vetoed that bill on April 26, 2006. I am not, to be frank, I
have not calculated the number of, whether it is still possible for the Legislature to override that veto.
Perhaps others with more experience with working in the State Legislative process would, but I'm sorry
I'm not able to, to report to you on that particular detail. But as of today, at least, the, the bill has been
- 43-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

June 6, 2006

vetoed. So, we're back here today, Mr. Chairman, with the revised version of the bill as, as presented in
your binders of the resolution, excuse me, Charter amendment resolution.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama, you have any other questions for Corporation Counsel on this?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, no, I believe the intent is to clarify and take away potential
confusion. Currently, because the statute states that you can file the claim also I believe either with the
County Clerk or the, the Chair Member, Chairperson of the respective Councils, there have been times,
and I'm sure Mr. Kane during the last term, we have received claims filed against the County, because
that's what is right now allowable under State law, and our Charter states that you will submit to the
County Clerk.
So, I would say that, one, this would be helpful and although it does not change State statute, I think it's
very clear from the County's Constitution, the Charter, that this is how we provide the process to file a
claim against the County, and it is clear that the existing law will set those time provisions as it relates to
the acceptance of those legal claims. So, I would ask you and the Members to support Corporation
Counsel's consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So noted, Member Hokama. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. First, if we can ask Mr. Moto, and I apologize if I didn't catch
the explanation for the change from the complete repeal, which is the recommendation on the
June 1, '05, on Page 3, to the revision of the language. If we can understand why we had that change
made from the recommendation of a complete repeal.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, the, the revised resolution arose out of your discussion at your last meeting, and I
think some of the reasons that were put forward at the time was that it would still be helpful to have a
section the Charter dealing
the subject claims so that people would know, first of
that they
had the right to file
claims.
also gave
at least some guidance as to,
they
should
says it

There isn't, there is an old statute, a State statute
says
of the Board of Supervisors, I think it says, or the Council Chair. And, of course, that's never been the
procedure here in the County of Maui. And I, I, I'm, I think it's a safe guess that perhaps the Council
Chair would not be, want to have that responsibilities because of the cumbersome nature that that, of
that work. So, it was thought best, at least in that discussion, to try to see if most of 13-6 could be
retained and just fix that portion dealing with the time period by which claims should be filed.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I'll proceed. Thank you. The other question is, and, and I note in your
comments, I think we talked about, and your opening remarks about the 30 years of precedent that the
Supreme Court overrode. First, does, does the, does HRS have precedent over a Charter? Just so we,
we're clear, because I know we're talking about a con ... , a conflict that you folks point out. So, which
one would, would, would take precedent in this case?
MR. MOTO: As we speak the, the Supreme Court decision in Kahale is the law of the land. It, in, in reaching
that decision the Supreme Court had to interpret and address those statutory provisions. If, if you want,
I can give you a brief synopsis of what happened in that case. It was basically a personal injury, it was a
dog bite case, I think it was. A family went to a city park, City and County of Honolulu Park, I think it
was on the windward, it may be Waimanalo, and they had a child with them. And there was a loose
dog, and the dog bit the child.
And the parents later sued the City, and the City said that it was too late to file the suit. I'm sorry, I've
kind of lost track of-VICE-CHAIR KANE: And, Mr. Chair, although I didn't ask for it, I want to have Mr. Moto finish his thought
on this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And then I have just one or two more questions, and I'll, I'll yield. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: So noted.
MR. MOTO: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, I've kind of lost my train of thought. I think I'm going to have to go
back and have a few minutes just to refresh my memory as to the details ofthe case.
ask

MOLINA:
requesting?

Okay.

to

details of

U"AUU,,,>,

IS

VICE-CHAIR KANE: It's in a similar vein, but it's not with respects to the details of the case itself.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Proceed, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To help me with this request that's before us,
Mr. Chairman, I guess I'm trying to have a better understanding of my obligation as an elected person.
So, is it first and foremost to protect the financial interest of the County in recognizing this from two
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year to six months, because that limits the amount of time that our citizenry who elect us to be here, it
limits their time to come forward with a claim against the County?
And so, which, you know, it almost puts me on the fence of which side I'm protecting, the right for the
members to have adequate amount of time to protect, to, to file a claim that's referenced in the claims
part regarding damages for any injury to person or property by reason of negligence, etc. So, it comes to
the time, the time period.
Now, if the Supreme Court is the one who made it, was put into position to make a determination by
keeping this here, say we look at this, and we decide as the body not to make the adjustment as
proposed. Does that create an exposure on our part if somebody does come in and file a claim after six
months, or is it because, as Mr. Moto said, it's the law of the land based on this Kahale decision that
basically the courts will now recognize it as such and, therefore, anybody trying to make a claim even if
we have two years sitting in our County Charter, would they, would it, can we anticipate that it would be
thrown out, dismissed, or whatever the correct terminology is based on what's sitting here, and based on
the comments of, of Corporation Counsel? So, I'm just trying to understand that part, the legality of it.
I don't know if Ms. Lutey is, is prepared to respond.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Ms. Lutey.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Actually, Chairman Kane, or sorry, Councilmember Kane, I believe that because the
Supreme has said that it is a six-month claim filing period that it would preempt anything that we have,
and we would make that argument in court.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, ultimately it, doesn't matter if, as an example, for the sake of discussion so
that the public as well as ourselves understand this, if we as a body decided that in spite of that we
wanted to provide people in this County with a two year window of opportunity, and I'm not saying
that's a position, but that's remaining consistent with what currently exists, if we wanted to as a body
make a policy decision that we wanted to maintain that, it would have no standing in effect, because of
the Supreme Court ruling
the
case; is that correct? Or would that create a conflict,
therefore,
be a
circumstances
a court or any courts would
to face?
MS.

I
we
Dfe~errmH~a by
decision.
saying
going to redo this and say, no, we are going to go
two years after
Kahale decision,
different set facts,
I
be prepared to
get
a discussion of that

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. No, I, and I understand. And, and I'm asking this, Mr. Chairman, because I can
see the logic behind the request for us to main... , maintain the consistency with what the ruling is, but
we should always keep in mind that how we arrived at this section in the Charter in the first place, the
legislative purpose and intent should always be looked at before we make decisions to change that. And
if, in fact, the intent of this was by a body who had a discussion prior to having a Charter created, or
Charter item created was that they thought it was in the best interest of the citizens of this County to
have a window of opportunity based on negligence or injury that they have this set period of time of two
years that that's something that we should at least consider.
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Not to say that it's wrong or right, or that we, you know, that we should just move forward with this, but
we as Legislators I think it's important for us to always keep mindful of what the original purpose and
intent of it was. And if we don't do that, you know, then I think we detach ourselves of what the whole
meaning of this Charter means to the citizenry, and how they can rely on us as applying things
consistently and fairly. So, I just want to share those comments.
You know, it seems like a slam dunk but not quite unless somebody can provide that, you know, during
the discussion back in whenever the Charter item was brought forward which seems if it's, 1983 was
when the Charter was created, and then amended after that. If these cases were looked at differently for
the past 30 years which is part of the comments of Corporation Counsel, maybe we'll never be able to
know. I don't know that, and I don't know if it's a matter of record somewhere that this body, a sitting
body at one point in time put forward on the Charter for the, for the people of the County of Maui to
vote on, which is what this Charter is, and people said we support two years, because it's going to
protect me as a citizen to come forward if I feel that I've been, you know, unduly hurt or injured in a
negligent fashion. So, I pose the issue, I put it on the table for whatever it's worth, but we move forward
from here. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, My. Kane. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. First, just a point of clarification from Corporation
Counsel. From all of this what we have in the Charter is moot then, because the six months would be
what the law would, that would stand up in court the six-month time period.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Councilmember Carroll, that is the case. And, and I think that maybe we need to
just have a distinction what court does based on the law in this State is one thing, but the Council can
choose to pay things after a claim period time such as what we did in the Lahaina flooding situation. So,
I just want to be clear that when
talking about the six months and so forth, we're talking about what
our Supreme
has said is the law, but what the body decides to do on its own can be different from
It's
we need clarification, I
for the public,
they understand
rules are
'~"'UUb about
legal aspect of
going to track
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
you. Considering
is not going to, or let's say a person comes at seven months,
out
say we
leave that in the Charter that you have two years and somebody looks at our Charter and says, oh, well,
you know I have some time over here. I'll get a lawyer as soon as it's convenient, you know, next
September, and I'll be able to handle this or whatever, instead they'll be left out in the cold. If we leave
that in the Charter, all we're doing is misleading people. We're setting them up, we're setting them up
to where there's a chance where they might not go over there and bring a legitimate case forward against
the Council, because they feel that they have the time. I would urge all the Members to make this
change, because it is what we need to do to protect our citizens to make sure that they don't be left out in
the cold with a legitimate claim. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Committee Members, any other questions or comments for
Corporation Counsel with regards to this particular Charter amendment proposal? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I agree with Councilmember Carroll. I think that the more clear we can be
and the more accurate information we give to the general public the more transparent we are. And I
think even though people may not like it, because sometimes you can't get all the information together
in such a short period of time, I think if that's what the law currently is I think we should move forward
with the Charter amendment. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I lost my place. What are we on 28? Here it is.
Okay. The, the revised resolution takes a time specific out and just puts in as provided by law. And that
makes it correct, but it doesn't make it real clear so that anybody in the County who is, you know,
looking at, at this resolution or rather at this Charter provision once its passed doesn't give them a real
clear idea of how much time they have.
And so, I'm just wondering since we're not under a very strict time constraint, we have until the end of
August to do this, if we could wait until we find out if the Governor's veto sticks, because ifit doesn't, if
it's overridden, and it goes back to two years, then we essentially wouldn't have to do anything.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: We would have no objections or problems with that recommendation. There is no requirement
for action today as far as we're concerned.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and I'm sure if they, if the Legislature wants to override her veto
that would be done within the next month or so. Nobody's real certain, but-MR. MOTO: Yes, assuming
Yes, presumably by
was
or not.

it is

possible, because we haven't really thought all
convene
we
learned vv

H',",LU".

fact,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, Mr.
you were discussing
heard what I said, but as the amendment is
now it
takes away
as
provided by law. And while that would suit the purpose of what we're trying to do here
not
misleading the public, it also doesn't give them any kind of timeframe to count on. They're going to
have to do further research to find out what provided by law is. And my suggestion is we wait until we
find out if the Governor's veto has been overridden or not. And, and if not, then essentially there's
nothing that we have to do to change it, to change what we have in the, in the Charter.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson, and it's a nice segue way into my, my comments
we've really only had 20-plus minutes to discuss this proposal from Corporation Counsel, and being that
we do have a recess date designated for Thursday, and in addition to get a status on what's happening
with, with regards to the Governor's proposed veto, I would like to ask the body for consideration to
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postpone decision making on this until, well, at least continue further discussions on this matter on
Thursday, and if, if it's the will of the body to take action, then so be it to consider doing this on
Thursday, on our recess date, at 9:30. Any comments to the Chair's proposal? Mr. Pontanilla followed
by Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, in regards to the body, the body, the Legislature overriding the
Governor's veto, when is the drop dead date for that body to act?
CHAIR MOLINA: Good question. I think that will give Staff some time to, I don't know if we can get that
answer right now for you, but I'm sure by Thursday we could get that answer for you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Member Tavares, followed by Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I just wanted to point out that these Charter proposals need to be in
the hands of the Clerk, you know, as they're stating in here by August 31st, twelve noon. So, we don't
have a whole lot of time to deal with these Charter amendments, and it's going to take two readings at
Council, so we're already looking at, we need to get some kind of decision in here within the next few
weeks, because it will push us into that deadline.
So, one of the other things I would like, maybe Staff can look up is for this item what is covered in our
County Code regarding claims? Because perhaps that's where the reference needs to be in the Charter,
because that County Code can be changed as, more easily, because if we have to do a Charter
amendment every time there's an extension, or a different time period, then it's going to be cumbersome
and the public is, is already confused enough when we have these Charter amendments. There, there's
some things in the Charter that I don't think the, the public really understands when they vote on, on
some of these Charter amendments, because they're technical in nature, but I think that's why we have
the County Code to further clarify for the public what the policies are that guide this, this body, or this
County.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Tavares. Member Kane.
very briefly for clarification I know
were some references to misleading
public
response to some
earlier comments. I
.. (change tape) . .. want to
clarify
of Maui
we
we're going I, I simply was
sake of discussion so that we understand
just putting it on the table so that we would, I would engage the thoughts of
Members not to take
position and to try and get into a debate about it, but simply to engage the Members intellect on this, on
this issue.
And my point was, and, and let me reiterate that point is that if the people of the County of Maui
supported a two-year thing and if there was a ruling by a Supreme Court that's otherwise I think
Ms. Lutey responded that if this body were to, even in light of that still, chose to say you know what for
the people of the County of Maui we want to retain the original spirit intent, if that was the case, of two
years then, again, I think that that would be a clear statement, and it wouldn't be misleading. It would
be clear, and the public would have that opportunity to have their say on that. I'm not saying that's
where we're going.
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I just wanted to make sure that the point was made, and Ms. Lutey responded by clearly stating that that
would present a different set of facts and circumstances that would have to be at some point, if
somebody brought it forward, would have to go through a process of, you know, of judicial review. So,
I, I apologize if anybody's not catching on to what I'm trying to say. It just comes back to trying to
understand where we were, where we are, and where we're going. And that's all it was. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. So, with that being said with regards to clarifying your
statements, Mr. Kane, the Chair's intent is to recess this meeting. And we'll continue the discussion on
this Item as well as the other two Charter amendment proposals, Items No. 44 and 46. This meeting will
be in recess until Thursday, June 8th, at 9:30 a.m. . .. (gavel). ..
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